
1

Minutes of the Meeting of the
ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY COMMISSION

Held: THURSDAY, 29 JUNE 2017 at 5:30 pm

P R E S E N T :

 Councillor Cleaver – Vice Chair in the Chair

Councillor Aldred
Councillor Chaplin

Councillor Dempster
Councillor Thalukdar

In Attendance

Councillor Rory Palmer  – Assistant City Mayor (Adult Social Care, Health, 
Integration and Wellbeing)

* * *   * *   * * *
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Dr Chowdhury. The 
Chair, Councillor Newcombe, had also submitted his apologies and the Vice 
Chair took the Chair for the meeting.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Dempster declared an Other Disclosable Interest in respect of 
agenda item 10, the Adult Social Care Customer Portal 12 Month Update, in 
that she had a physical disability.

Councillor Aldred declared an Other Disclosable Interest in respect of agenda 
item 14, Adult Social Care Prevention Services delivered by the Voluntary and 
Community Sector, in that she was involved in a lunch club in the Thurncourt 
Ward.

In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, these interests were not 
considered so significant that they were likely to prejudice the respective 
people’s judgement of the public interest. Councillors Dempster and Aldred 
were not, therefore, required to withdraw from the meeting.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Members were advised that in relation to minute item 74, Continuing Health 
Care Funding, the recommendations made would be forwarded to the Chair of 



2

the Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission.

AGREED:
that the minutes of the meeting of the Adult Social Care Scrutiny 
Commission held 4 April 2017 be confirmed as a correct record.

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE

AGREED:
that the Terms of Reference for Scrutiny Commissions be noted.

5. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

AGREED:
that the membership of the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Commission 
be noted.

6. DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY 
COMMISSION 2017/2018

Members were asked to note the meeting dates for the Adult Social Care 
Scrutiny Commission as follows:

Tuesday 5 September 2017
Tuesday 24 October 2017
Tuesday 12 December 2017
Tuesday 23 January 2018
Tuesday 20 March 2018

The Chair stated that the meetings would commence at 5.30pm.

AGREED:
that the meeting dates and the start time for the Adult Social Care 
Scrutiny Commission 2017 -2018 be noted

7. PETITIONS

The Monitoring Officer reported that no petitions had been received.

8. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND STATEMENTS OF CASE

The Monitoring Officer reported that no questions, representations or 
statements of case had been received.

The Chair advised that, having regard to the attendance of Officers, she 
would re-order the agenda accordingly:

9. ADULT SOCIAL CARE CUSTOMER PORTAL 12 MONTH UPDATE

The Strategic Director, Adult Social Care (ASC) submitted a report that 



3

provided a twelve month update on the ASC Customer Portal. Prior to the 
consideration of the report, the Commission received a demonstration which 
showed how the Portal worked and how an enquiry could be made.

Members heard that the enquirer would need to provide an email address and 
questioned what would happen if they did not have one. The officer responded 
that people using the online system were likely to have an email address; the 
enquiry could be made by a family member or friend who was acting on the 
authority of the person in question. 

Queries were raised regarding the number of people who terminated their 
enquiry before the process had finished.  Officers explained that the enquirer 
may have left the site because they had found the answer they were seeking or 
it might be because the enquirer felt that the process was not providing the 
information they were seeking. The Department had undertaken considerable 
work to streamline the process and it was now a much more straightforward 
system. A Member commented that she was interested in the feedback from 
those people who had terminated their enquiry before the process had finished 
and the officer responded that they were very keen to receive feedback and 
speak to people about their experiences. The Strategic Director added that 
sometimes people phoned in after they had terminated their enquiry. If they did, 
officers asked them if they had used the portal and if so, feedback was sought 
as to their experiences. 

In response to questions raised, Members heard that the ASC portal was a site 
within the Adult Social Care pages of Leicester City Council website. The 
information that a person submitted on the portal went straight into the 
Department’s customer database. This resulted in a considerable saving of 
officer time in not having to transfer the information from one source into 
another. There were links within the portal to other websites such as NHS 
Choices where the user could access further information which may be 
relevant to their enquiry.

A Member suggested that the portal should be brought to the attention of Ward 
Councillors; they may be interested in arranging a training session and local 
Members may wish to consider how they supported awareness of the Portal 
through using their community meeting budget.

A Member asked whether someone with little or no English would be able to 
use the portal. The Deputy City Mayor responded that this was a difficult issue 
because any translation within the portal, would need to be offered in many 
different languages. A Member raised a concern that sometimes grandchildren 
acted as a translator for an elderly grandparent and this put the child in a very 
difficult situation because of the nature of the questions that were asked.  
Officers explained that practitioners tended to have a pragmatic view of when a 
translator was needed and family members were not asked to translate when a 
formal assessment was being carried out.

The Chair asked whether some people might be missing out on the help they 
needed, as usage figures for the new portal appeared to be relatively low.  The 



4

Strategic Director responded that the portal was still at an early stage and it 
was expected that the number of portal submissions would increase over time.  
Members also heard that the portal did not replace telephone enquiries; it was 
an additional route by which enquiries could be made and information found. A 
Member questioned whether people would be able to use the portal from one 
of the customer service hubs, and it was confirmed that this would be possible, 
but heard that it was envisaged that because of the nature of enquiries, people 
were more likely to access the portal from a home setting.  
 
The Chair concluded the discussion and asked for the report to be noted and 
requested a further update be brought to a future meeting.

AGREED:
that the report be noted and a further update on the Adult Social 
Care Portal be brought to a future meeting of the Commission. 

10. END OF LIFE TASK GROUP REVIEW

The Chair referred to the Task Group Review into End of Life and asked 
Members to agree to set this aside for the time being.

The Chair also asked Members to consider possible topics for future Task 
Group Reviews. One suggestion had already been received which was to look 
into best practice across the country aimed at addressing loneliness. 

AGREED:
that for the time being, no further work be carried out on the Task 
Group Review into End of Life.

11. ADULT SOCIAL CARE STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2017 / 18

The Strategic Director, Adult Social Care (ASC) submitted a report that set out 
the ASC’s primary purpose statement and strategic priorities for 2017/18.

The Strategic Director explained that the primary purpose statement provided a 
framework to help deliver the strategic priorities; those priorities were the key 
issues that the service would be working to during the year.

The Chair expressed approval for the strategic priorities and the primary 
purpose statement explaining that it included everything that she would wish to 
see. She expressed a hope that through this, people would be helped to have 
healthier lifestyles and happier lives. 

AGREED:
that the primary purpose statement and revised strategic priorities 
for 2017-18 be noted.

12. DOMICILIARY SUPPORT SERVICE PROCUREMENT

The Strategic Director submitted a report that provided an update on the 



5

procurement of new domiciliary services, which were to be in place from 9 
October 2017.

The Strategic Director explained that a report on the intention to procure had 
previously been considered by the Commission, and Members comments had 
been fed into the process. A procurement exercise had been carried out jointly 
with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and both the Leicester City 
Council and the CCG would be using the same framework contract of 
providers. One of the Council’s main providers would not be continuing after 9 
October; however those people who used that provider would be able to 
continue with them under the direct payment scheme. 

At the request of Members, the Strategic Director agreed to bring an update on 
the domiciliary care procurement to the Commission in the new-year, and also 
a verbal update in September. He said that it was important to know that those 
people who wished to remain with their current provider had a smooth 
transition.  

AGREED:
1) that the outcome of the procurement exercise be noted; and

2) that the Commission receive a verbal update at their September 
meeting and a further report early in 2018. 

13. TRANSITIONAL CARE - FROM CHILDREN'S TO ADULT SERVICES

The Strategic Director provided a verbal update on progress being made 
towards the provision of transitional care from children’s to adult services. 
Points made included the following:

 A group had been set up across Adult Social Care and Children’s Services 
to focus on practical issues and possible improvements that could be 
achieved quickly. Consideration was being given as to the age when 
transition should start; this might be at 14 years for example. 

 It was hoped to set up a Transition Board in September or October, which 
would include someone who had been through the transition process (a 
young person or parent for example) acting as Chair or Joint Chair and other 
service users.

 It was hoped to be able to report back to the Commission in the new-year, 
on progress made.

Members expressed approval for the plans relating to transitional care. 
Comments were made that services for adults were very different to those 
services that were provided for young people and it was important for families 
to understand this. Members also welcomed the plans that that younger people 
possibly at 14 years of age, would be involved in transitional arrangements.  
The importance of an update being brought to the Commission was 
emphasised.



6

AGREED:
1) that the update on Transitional Care be noted; and

2) that a further update be brought back to the Commission

14. ADULT SOCIAL CARE PREVENTION SERVICES DELIVERED BY THE 
VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR

The Strategic Director submitted a report that provided an overview of the 
proposed changes to preventative services delivered by the voluntary and 
community sector (VCS), funded by Adult Social Care (ASC).  Members heard 
that a new ASC Prevention and Wellbeing Grant Fund had been created and 
received with positive interest. 

Members considered the report and raised comments and queries which 
included the following:

 The Grant Fund was generally considered to be a good initiative and good 
way forward which would shape services for a wider group of people. 
Concerns were expressed that the remit of the grant should include 
questions about longer term sustainability. The Strategic Director explained 
that the grant gave a modest sum of money to groups to help them get their 
project started and it was not aimed at long term investment in specific 
projects.

 Concerns were expressed as to how those people who required specialist 
services would be able to access that help if those services had their funding 
reduced. The Deputy City Mayor responded that the proposals were out for 
consultation and they would look at any such concerns raised. However 
there was a need to make financial savings and he believed that the 
flexibility of the grant provided exciting opportunities to try new initiatives. 

 The problem of loneliness was raised and a Member commented that this 
was a key issue. Coffee mornings and lunch clubs were said to offer a 
valuable opportunity to bring people together, particularly where people 
could grow and cook their own food. A Member commented that while there 
was a role for lunch clubs, there were people now who wanted a different 
offer and coffee morning ‘drop ins’, especially if held more than once a week, 
could be more helpful. There was also a need to diversify. 

 The Chair asked that the process of applying for a grant would be one that 
community people would understand. The Deputy City Mayor responded 
that he did not want the process to be unduly bureaucratic, but intended that 
it would be straightforward, transparent and of benefit to the community. 
However it also needed to be about accountability. Recipients of grant 
funding would be required to submit feedback; the council needed to know 
that the money was well spent. In addition, feedback would enable the 
sharing of good ideas.  



7

The Chair concluded the discussion and asked for an update on the 
consultation to be brought to a future meeting of the Commission.

AGREED:
1) that the report be noted; and

2)  for feedback on the consultation be brought to a future 
meeting of the Commission.

15. ADULT AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY COMMISSION WORK 
PROGRAMME

The Strategic Director commented that officers needed reasonable time to 
prepare and bring reports to a meeting and that it would be helpful to have 
items for business on the work programme to aid planning.

The Chair asked Members to email Jerry Connolly, the Scrutiny Policy Officer, 
with any suggestions for items of business for the work programme.

16. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 7.15pm.


